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OFFICE OF THE Mavor
New York, N.Y. 10007

November 24, 2004

Hon. Victor Robles

City Clerk and Clerk of the Council
Municipal Building

New York, NY 10007

Dear Mr. Robles:”

Pursuant to Section 37 of the New York City Charter, I hereby disapprove
Introductory Number 124-A, which would amend the Charter and Administrative Code in
relation to the requirements of the campaign finance program for City elections, the
requirements applicable to transition and inauguration entities, participation in the
campaign finance program by self-funded candidates, the debate program and limitation
of the use of government resources during an election year.

The City’s voluntary campaign finance program serves important purposes, but
the increase in the matching formula to 4-to-1 (or 5-to-1 in certain cases), previously
enacted by the City Council, has magnified the contributions of those who do business
with the City by matching those contributions with public funds. In failing to address this
problem, this bill, combined with two other bills (Int. No. 466-A and Int. No. 371-A)
passed together with it that aggressively seek to regulate non-participants, represents a
missed opportunity to bring genuine improvement and reform to the City’s voluntary
campaign finance program So as to fulfill the program’s original purposc and promise. In-
addition, this bill fails to include other important reforms, and includes questionable
provisions that constitutc a step backwards in campaign finance reform .

The practices of government contractors and officials of making and receiving
political contributions have been referred to collectively as “pay to play.” “Pay to play”
contributions can be intended to influence governmental decisions and win preferential
treatment, or have the appearance of doing so, thereby reducing public confidence in
elected officials and undermining the intended purposes of the City’s campaign finance
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Securities Rulemaking Board, an organization supervised by the Securities and Exchange
Commission. That rule generally prohibits municipal securities brokers and dealers from
engaging in securities business with municipalities within two years after any political
contributions made to municipal elected officials, or candidates for elected office, where
the relevant offices can influence the hiring of the brokers or dealers. The dangers of
“pay to play” contributions also motivated an executive order issued by the former
Governor of New Jersey that attempted to address such contributions more broadly.

Provisions of the Charter that were recommended by the 1998 Charter Revision
Commission and adopted by the electorate in that year require the Campaign Finance
Board to implement disclosure by participating candidates of whether contributors are
doing business with the City, and further authorize the Board to regulate contributions by
such contributors. However, the Board has never implemented the Charter provisions
that were adopted in 1998, and this bill likewise fails to address the flaw in the program
that motivated the adoption of those provisions.

Int. No. 124-A would make only changes that would be consistent with the
narrow interests of the current incumbent participants in the program, including those
planning to run for other offices because of term limits. In addition to it failure to
address the problem of “pay to play” contributions, the bill fails to enact limitations upon
public funding that were proposed by the Campaign Finance Board after the 2001 general
elections and that would have limited certain excessive costs to the taxpayers. Even
recent marginal efforts to address the funding of campaigns with minimal opposition
have failed. The Board’s Chair pointed out in October of this year that the “cost savings
that might have been identified with the previous proposal are now diminished to almost
nothing.” The resulting package simply ignores and even thwarts the goal of the
program, which is not to benefit incumbents with still more matching of contributions by
those who do business but to reduce the appearance and reality of improper influence
upon public officials

In particular, Int. No. 124-A would provide a direct monetary benefit to
candidates for Mayor and other offices, and present a corresponding bill to the taxpayers,
by raising the “bonus” matching rate in certain instances where a candidate runs against a
non-participant to as much as 6-to-1 and public funding by more than $3,000,000 for
each participating candidate who qualifies for the maximum public funds in a mayoral
election. Meanwhile, with expenditure limits upon program participants lifted in that
situation and no restrictions upon taking money from those who do business with the
City, the potential for improper influence by those contributors upon program participants
will only grow at taxpayer expense.

Further, some changes made by Int. No. 124-A are questionable. The elimination
of one of the two runoff primary debates does not serve the public interest, and the
provision for sponsors to determine who are the “leading contenders” permitted to
participate in the second primary debate invites disputes over sponsors” decisions. The
amendments to the Charter section on use of government resources do not salvage the
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exception apparently designed to ensure that Council Members may bill the taxpayers for
political mass mailings that criticize the executive budget. The power given to the Board
1o enforce this provision should properly be vested with the Conflicts of Interest Board or
another agency without Council appointees; such a transfer of power requires a
referendum under the Charter and state law.

The City of New York should join other jurisdictions in implementing new
reforms that would truly address the issue of contributions by those who do business with
government. I urge the Council to work with my Administration to enact swiftly an
effective restriction upon the acceptance of such “pay to play” contributions, so that we
can return to addressing the issues that first led to the enactment of the City’s campaign
finance law. Tntroductory Number 124-A is hereby disapproved.

Sincerely,

Michael R. Bloomberg

C: Hon A. Gifford Miller




